
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Q&A table regarding draft contract in accordance with point 5.6 of Terms of Tender. 

 

Please also refer to point II.1.C of the Notice: Detailed technical specification (Employer’s requirements) constitute an integral part of the Tender Documentation 

and is available in the registered office of the Ordering Party and, at Bidder’s written request, shall be sent to the Bidder by post or e-mail by the expiry of the bids’ 

submission date set out in point 6.12 of the Terms of Tender. 

TENDER 

12/EU/2018/IMV 

REGARDING PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF 3 CONTAINER TERMINAL TRACTORS 

(IMV) 



 

No Question 
  

Answer 

1 
2.3 Design Standards  
All components to be European Origin 
Axles are not of EU. Can this be acceptable please? 

  We do accept, however please include axles product cards in the offer. 

2 
5.5 Wheels 
Can we offer Continental 300/80 R22.5 tubeless tires please? 

  We do accept. 

3 
5.12 
Chassis – Welded Structure 
Can Bolted structure be acceptable? 

  We do accept, as long as there will be no need for periodical tightening of 
bolts. 

4 

6.4.3. Tire pressure monitoring system 
Please accept solution when pressure sensors are mounted on tire 
inflation valves and there is a reader in cabin showing drop of pressure 
above 0,5 Bar in any tire, not shows exact pressure in particular wheel. 
That is simple and robust solution and works both for tube type and 
tubeless wheels. 

   
We do not accept. System should be showing exact pressure in each wheel 
separately. 

5 

7. Diagnostics 
All eventual problems occurring with the machine can be checked from 
display in the cabin. There is no PC/USB delivered with the machine as 
such deep-into diagnostic equipment is reserved for components 
manufacturer only (Volvo, Dana as examples) or their written service 
partners. 
Checking and calibration for maintenance reasons can also be done from 
display in cabin. Please accept. 
As for online access to spare parts catalogues and ordering parts we have 
available a platform, that is no problem to connect DCT. 

  We do accept. 



 

6 

3x Terminal Tractor 
 
4. General requirements 
-Lowest 5th wheel height from the ground level: 1100 mm 
Please change to 1200 mm as 1100 mm is too low. 
 

  Clarification was made. 

7 

6.1 General information 
-Ignition by means of START/STOP button 
Please explain how it should work: 
-1.) Activating the ignition with a Start/Stop button 
or 
-2.) Activating (starting) the engine with a Start/Stop button 
 
According to the machine directive we need to have a key. The vehicle 
must be protected against unauthorized usage. If you have a start/stop 
button for the ignition too, then everybody can start the engine and use 
the vehicle. 
 
The process is as follows: 
-using a key for activating the ignition 
and then 
-using a start/stop button for starting/stopping the engine 
Please check and confirm the correct process. 

  We do confirm as follows: 
The process is as follows: 
-using a key for activating the ignition 
and then 
-using a start/stop button for starting/stopping the engine 
 

8 
6.4.1 Switches 
-Ignition switch – START/STOP button 
See comment no. 2 

  We do confirm: 
 Activating (starting) the engine with a Start/Stop button 

9 

8. Diagnostic Tools 
The software allows to 
-calibrate transmission 

  Please clarify – what if there is an oil change? Based on our current 
experience there is always calibration after total transmission oil change. 
What if there is an controller failure (i.e. by overheating) and transmission 
need to be calibrated after cooling down? 



 

Calibration of transmission can only be done by the manufacturer, i.e. 
calibrate transmission should be deleted (as mentioned by you under 
point no. 22) 
Please confirm 

10 

5. Main equipment, 5.1. Engine 
Is it Start/Stop button on engine acceptable? 

 

  Yes, according to Technical Specification: “ There shall be an 
START/ STOP button on engine (or nearby, if engine 
manufacturer does not provide on-board-mounted button), 
allowing to start engine when cabin is fully lifted” 

11 

We have to comply to new stage 5 emission legislation that will start in jan 
2019. Can you please include this in the tender? 

 

  As in Technical Specification: “The Engine must be delivered by 
“Experienced manufacturer” and shall be an economical Diesel 
type. Exhaust gas emission must meet the emissions standards 
applicable in EU and Poland on the day of delivery and 
preferably, exceed them.” 

12 
5. Main equipment, 
Fixed steering wheel allowed? 

 

  No, we do not accept this. Steering wheel column must be adjustable  

13 

5. Main equipment, 5.7. Fifth wheel 
In case fifth wheel is fixed to the chassis then please state the exact 
required fifth wheel height based on current trailers. 

 

  Required height is described in point 4. General Requirements 

14 

5.5 Wheels and 4 General requirements. 
Minimum 5th wheel height in combination with the 11 R22.5 tires is not 
possible. Minimum 5th wheel height with 11 R22.5 tires and mudguards is 
1177 mm. Is this acceptable? If not do you allow us to mount different 
tires? 

 

  Yes, we do accept 1177 mm. Tires shall be 11 R22.5 

15 

5. Main equipment, 5.11. Operator’s cabin 
Turn indicator should be visible from the rear of vehicle even with 
container loaded. How does this work when there is a trailer behind the 
tractor. Are there direction indicators installed on the trailer that van be 

  Please refer to picture: 



 

controlled via ISO 1185 connector? Please specify. (see picture “visibility 
direction indicators”. 

 

  



 

There are also road lamps on terminal trailers via  ISO 1185 connector. 

16 

5. Main equipment, 5.11. Operator’s cabin 
Roof window dimensions: 1255x220 mm (see attachment) 
Would it be acceptable? 

 

   W do accept 

17 

5. Main equipment, 5.11. Operator’s cabin 
What is mean: roof of operator’s cabin with protective screen made of min 
4mm steel flats? 
Our cabins are ROPS and FOPS certified. Do you accept this? 

 

   It is about safety guard all over the roof. i.e.: 

 

18 

6. Electrical Part, 6.2. Lighting 
LED beacon lamp on the roof demonstrating seatbelt is fastened. We have 
this option available with a green continuous burning light. Would this be a 
suitable solution? 
 

  No, we do not accept this. Please refer to Technical Specification. 

19 

6. Electrical Part, 6.3. Electrical equipment in the driver;s cabin 
Standard DIN radio mounting slot within drivers reach - 2 DIN slots are 
installed in the compartment underneath the cabin roof. 

  

  We do accept this. 



 

 

20 

8. Diagnostic Tools 
No additional diagnostic tools required.  
Accounts for Parts Online are available 

 

  We do accept this. 

21 
10. Technical documentation 
Drawings are made in A2 PDF format. Is this acceptable? 

 

  Yes, we do accept this. 

22 

10. Technical documentation 
Main documentation of IMV is delivered in Polish language. 
Only drivers manual is supplied in Polish. Parts and maintenance manuals 
only in English.  
Engine, transmission and axle supplier do not provide their manuals in 
Polish. 
Is it acceptable this point to provide documentation from engine, 
transmission and axle components in English? Translation of the manuals 
will be really expensive 

 

  No, we do not accept this. Please refer to Technical Specification. 

23 
(others) 
Is it required tire monitoring system. Is this mandatory or a nice to have? 

 

  This is a mandatory system. Please refer to Technical specification. 

24 

1. training 
TMHP will arrange the training by itself. So the manufacturer of the Engine 
and transmission will not do the training by itself. Is this acceptable? 

 

  No, we do not accept this. Please refer to Technical Specification. 


